
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

November 3, 2014 



Table of Contents

Agenda 2
PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck:

Cover Sheet 4
14-16 Case Analysis 5
Development Agreement 14

Whalehead Preservation Trust
Cover Sheet 70
Appointment Form 71

Approval of Minutes for October 20, 2014
Cover Sheet 72
Minutes for October 20, 2014 73

Budget Amendments
Budget Amendments 87

CDBG Monthly Status Report
Cover Sheet 91
Report 92

Building Permit Fee Schedule-Solar Array
Cover Sheet 93
Fees Amendment 94

Recommendation of Award, SOBWS Reverse Osmosis Well
Cover Sheet 96
Bid Tabulation 98
Award Recommendation 99

Dominion Right-of-Way Agreement for Parks & Rec
Maintenance Building

Cover Sheet 101
Agreement 102

1



Document last changed: 10/30/2014 4:44 PM 

REVISED 
Currituck County 

Board of Commissioners Agenda 
Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

Date: Monday, November 03, 2014 Time: 7:00 PM 

Work Session 

6 PM Historic Jarvisburg Colored School Facilities Presentation 

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation-Reverend Susan Fitch-Slater, Sharon United Methodist Church
B) Pledge of Allegiance-Reverend Susan Fitch-Slater, Sharon United

Methodist Church
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda;
please limit comments to 3 minutes.

Administrative Reports 

A) Senior Tarheel Legislative Update-Joanne Dibello

B) Tourism Department Awards Recognition

Public Hearings 

A) PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck: Request for a development agreement
between Currituck County and Survey Road, LLC for property located in
Moyock on Survey Road west of the intersection with Caratoke Highway,
Tax 15, Parcel 83, Moyock Township.

2



Document last changed: 10/30/2014 4:44 PM 

New Business 

A) Board Appointments:
1. Whalehead Preservation Trust

B) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of Minutes for October 20, 2014
2. Budget Amendments-Budget amendment #2015029 for Southern Outer

Banks Water System RO Plant Expansion was removed.
3. CDBG Monthly Status Report
4. Building Permit Fee Schedule-Solar Array
5. Recommendation of Award, SOBWS Reverse Osmosis Well
6. Dominion Right-of-Way Agreement for Parks & Rec Maintenance

Building

C) Commissioner’s Report

D) County Manager’s Report

Adjourn 

3



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title

PB  14-16 Lake View at Currituck request for a development agreement between Currituck County  and Survey Road, LLC 
for property located in Moyock on Survey Road west of the intersection with Caratoke Highway, PIN 001500000830000, 
Moyock Township. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The Development Agreement proposed between the Developer and Currituck County requires that the Developer 
install a new oversized public sewer force main to connect the Lake View at Currituck subdivision to the Moyock 
Central Sewer System.  The sewer mains, pump stations, and appurtenances subject to the development 
agreement will be dedicated to the county upon completion and acceptance by the Technical Review Committee.  
Through approval of the development agreement the county will reserve capacity in in the Moyock Central Sewer 
System for the build out of the Lake View at Currituck subdivision and will consider the cost of installation of the 
sewer force main as a cost of development for the purpose of establishing zoning vested rights.  Detailed 
obligations of the Developer and county are included in the draft Development Agreement. 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Mr. Craddock moved to approve PB 14-16 due to its consistency with the Moyock Small Area Plan and 
the 2006 Land Use Plan and the request is reasonable and in the public interest and does promote 
orderly growth and development.  Mr. Cooper seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

4



Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: October 27, 2014 

Subject: PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck – Development Agreement 

James O. Myers submitted an application for a Development Agreement between Survey Road, 
LLC (the “Developer”) and Currituck County for the proposed Lake View at Currituck subdivision 
located at 120 Survey Road in the Moyock Township.  The use of a development agreement is 
authorized in North Carolina General Statutes 153A-379.1– 153A-379.13 and Section 2.4.18 of 
the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance (UDO); the purpose and intent of a 
development agreement is to: 

1. Encourage comprehensive planning and capital facilities planning;
2. Ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development;
3. Encourage the efficient use of resources, while providing certainty in the process of

obtaining development permits and approvals; and
4. Reduce the economic costs of development by providing greater regulatory certainty.

The Development Agreement proposed between the Developer and Currituck County requires 
that the Developer install a new oversized public sewer force main to connect the Lake View at 
Currituck subdivision to the Moyock Central Sewer System.  The sewer mains, pump stations, and 
appurtenances subject to the development agreement will be dedicated to the county upon 
completion and acceptance by the Technical Review Committee.  Through approval of the 
development agreement the county will reserve capacity in in the Moyock Central Sewer System 
for the build out of the Lake View at Currituck subdivision and will consider the cost of installation 
of the sewer force main as a cost of development for the purpose of establishing zoning vested 
rights.  Detailed obligations of the Developer and county are included in the Conditions section of 
the Development Agreement. 

The Developer is also submitting an amended sketch plan and preliminary plat for approval, as 
well as requesting modifications to the current (special) use permit.  The significant changes 
include: 

1. Removal of road connection through Eagle Creek open space.  The third entrance road
across Eagle Creek open space is proposed for removal.  The entrance roads in the
subdivision were reviewed by a traffic engineer and NCDOT and the revised plans reflect
the recommendations.

2. Reduction in sidewalks and widths.  The applicant is requesting removal of sidewalks from
one side of the street and footbridge over the lake.  The resubmitted plans now include

5



sidewalks along one side of the street interconnected in open space and neighborhood 
commercial areas.   

3. Removal of county dedication, increase in commercial area, and decrease in open space.  The
1.75 acre tract previously dedicated to the county on the preliminary plat is proposed to
revert to the developer, allocated for commercial, and removed from open space in
exchange for installing a 6 inch sewer force main off-site of the development.  (See
Development Agreement)

4. Reduction in street intersection spacing.  The approved preliminary plat provides
intersection spacing of approximately 270 feet for the interconnection street (Chip’s
Road).   The revised plans reduce that spacing to approximately 170’ which is below the
approved spacing (270’ approximate) and the current UDO requirement (400’).

5. Revised phasing plan.
6. Removed specific playground equipment summary for pocket parks.
7. Reduction in structure setbacks/drainage easements.  The approved preliminary plan allows

setbacks to be as follows:
a. 20’ setback to NCDOT 50’ right of way and 22’ setback to back of curb.
b. 20’ separation between principal structures and 5’ pool setback to property line.
c. 10’ rear setback

The developer is requesting a modification in setbacks as follows: 
a. 20’ front setback
b. 5.5’ side setback 5’ pool setback to the property line
c. 10’ rear setback to open space.

8. Removal of community wastewater references.  The developer has removed the community
wastewater plant from the plans and the area is shown as future development.

9. Modifications to the current (special) use permit.  The developer proposes to delete
conditions related to subdivision access alignment and construction of the community
wastewater system.

The TRC recommendations related to the resubmitted plans include the following: 

1. The proposed interconnection street does not meet the required 400’ intersection spacing.
Since there is not precedent for further reduction, Staff recommends maintaining the
intersection spacing of the approved preliminary plat (approximately 270’).  The Board
will consider a text amendment on November 17, 2014 that proposes to reduce the
minimum intersection spacing to 125 feet for local streets.  If approved, the proposed
plans will meet the 125 foot spacing requirement.

2. The approved preliminary plat was given under the previous UDO which allowed for
patio style development (reduced lot sizes and setbacks).  The current UDO does not
provide for patio home development and the proposed setbacks are not consistent with
the approved preliminary plat or transition standards of the current UDO.  The applicant
plans to request a PUD Variance to allow for reduced side setbacks.  A PUD Variance
was previously approved to allow on-street parking.

3. The interconnection street shall include street trees and pavement to the property lines.  A
performance guarantee may be posted for the improvement if not installed at final plat.

4. Street names are currently under review by GIS.

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 2 of 9 

6



Enclosed please find a draft version of the Development Agreement that includes an amended 
sketch plan, preliminary plat and special use permit. 

Planning staff recommends approval because the proposed development agreement is consistent 
with the Moyock Small Area Plan because the subject property and sewer main extension are 
located in a Full Service area; is consistent with the Land Use Plan because it focuses sewer 
service in existing developed areas and in nearby targeted growth areas (POLICY WS3); and 
the development agreement demonstrates the impact on the future provision of public sewer 
capital improvements by the county. 

The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their August 12, 2014 meeting. 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 3 of 9 

7



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (8/12/14) 
Mr. Woody provided an overview of the development agreement. 

Mr. Cooper asked if the county would accept the sewer line that is being installed before the final 
plat is recorded. 

Mr. Woody said yes. 

Mr. Wright asked if the additional phasing of the development would require an increase in 
sewer capacity.  Does this set a precedent for the county to have to expand the sewer capacity? 

Mr. Woody said yes. 

Mr. Craddock said anticipated revenues from sewer commission fees and monthly users fees for 
sewer service will help to offset the investment the county will have to make with the expansion.  

Ms. Bell is concerned with the side setbacks. 

Mr. Cooper said tonight the board is considering the Development Agreement and not the 
changes. 

Mr. Craddock asked by removal of the conditions from the use permit, is this giving them the 
ability to create higher density by lowering these side setbacks. 

Mr. Woody said lowering the setbacks doesn’t create the ability to have a higher density.  

Mr. Bissell provided an overview of the proposal, wastewater treatment for the subdivision, 
phasing, sidewalks, and setbacks. 

Mr. Cooper asked when the agreement would expire. 

Mr. Woody said once it is adopted it is effective for 10 years. 

Mr. Bissell said everything should be platted within 4 to 5 years. 

Mr. Winslow said he has the adjacent farm, Lindsey Farm. Will there be any change in the 
already approved buffer zone between the farm and this project? 

Mr. Woody said it will remain the same. 

Mr. Winslow said the sewer line will run down the farm side of the road, is the intent to put it on 
farm property? 

Mr. Woody said the intent is to put it in DOT right-of-way. 

Mr. Winslow asked where the overflow from the lake will go. 

Mr. Bissell said it will go to Survey Road and under 168 Hwy. and out. 

Mr. Winslow asked will there be any enlargement of the existing ditch? 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 4 of 9 

8



Mr. Bissell said no. 

Mr. Clark closed the public hearing. 

ACTION 
Mr. Craddock moved to approve PB 14-16 due to its consistency with the Moyock Small Area 
Plan and the 2006 Land Use Plan and the request is reasonable and in the public interest and 
does promote orderly growth and development.  Mr. Cooper seconded the motion and motion 
carried unanimously.  

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 5 of 9 

9



Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 6 of 9 

10



Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To:  Jim Myers 
Mark Bissell 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: July 11, 2014 

Subject: PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck – Development Agreement 

The following comments have been received for the July 16, 2014 TRC meeting.  Modifications of 
the request must be submitted by July 22, 2014 in order to remain on the August 12, 2014 
Planning Board agenda.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC 
meeting. 

Planning, Ben Woody 
Reviewed 

1. Page 5: With county approval, the developer reserves the right to may modify the final
building plans to fit market conditions. 

2. Page 32: Add - Force mains, pump stations, and accessories shall be installed in
accordance with any standards provided by the county and shall be approved by the 
Technical Review Committee.  The developer is required to submit detail drawings and 
construction drawings associated with proposed force mains, pump stations, and 
accessories.  An as built drawing/survey shall be required prior to the county’s acceptance 
of public infrastructure.  All drawings shall be prepared and certified by a registered 
engineer. 

3. Do the proposed public force main sizes adequately serve future development?  Should
modeling be required to make this determination?   A reimbursement agreement can be 
proposed for oversized facilities. 

4. Page 32: If the county agreed to release any claim to the 1.75 acre tract of land
intended for public dedication, the TRC recommends a payment in-lieu be required. 

5. Page 32: Planning staff understands that a portion of wastewater plant capacity must be
reserved at all times for economic development purposes.  This may impact reservation 
calculations as outlined in this draft agreement. 

6. Page 33: Include development summary and phasing plan (table format) on Project
Phasing and WWTP Connection exhibit. 

7. Page 34: Force mains, pump stations, and accessories located in a subdivision or along the
NCDOT right-of-way shall be dedicated to Currituck County (need to discuss fee versus 
easement at TRC meeting).  Property owners or the developer shall own and be 
responsible for infrastructure from an individual clean out or pump station to the dwelling 
unit. 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 7 of 9 

11



8. Page 36: Pay for all normal costs…preparation of engineering plans, DWR permitting
State and local permitting…and installation of said 4” and 6” force mains, pump stations,
and accessories.

9. Page 36: The county must offer 22,650 GPD of WWTP capacity within two years of
what?  When will the reservation fee for phases 3 and 4 of Lake View be paid by the
developer?  How does this coincide with future reservations once Phase 2 WWTP capacity
is on-line?

10. Page 37: Planning staff recommends the use permit be formally amended with the
approval of this development agreement.

11. Page 37: need to discuss county cost obligations related to the EA at the TRC meeting.
Not sure about the county absorbing the cost for the permitting of force main extensions to
serve Lake View subdivision.

12. Page 37 – Obligation 3: see planning comment #4.
13. Is there a need to include dimensional standards or any other zoning requirements in this

development agreement?  The Lake View PUD falls under the transition standards in
Chapter 1 of the current UDO – this is a good opportunity to clarify any inconsistencies.

14. Following the TRC review, a meeting should be scheduled to begin discussing legal format
of the document, preparation responsibilities, and statutory requirements.

Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
1. I don’t understand the last paragraph of the original development narrative.  Are they

requesting capacity for 146 residences and 26 commercial connections?  What is the full 
amount of flow requested?  Shouldn’t we require the same reservation payment for the 
extra 42 single family and the 26 commercial connections? 

2. The residual payment appears to be proposed due at CO.  The remaining $429,000
should be due at final plat 

3. Remainder (75%) of sewer tap fee will be collected at final plat.
4. The 25% sewer tap reservation fee will also be required in order to reserve capacity on

Phases 3 & 4.

Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved 

Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved 

Currituck County Fire Marshal, James Mims 
Approval with Corrections 

1. The Needed Fire Flow (NFF) of new construction in the commercial area cannot exceed the
available fire flow at the location. Calculations are taken from the ISO method. 

Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 

1. *NOTE: CONSULT WITH ERIC WEATHERLY PE (COUNTY ENGINEER) 
CONCERNING MOYOCK SEWER DISTRICT HOOK UP APPROVAL FOR EACH 
LOT THAT MAKES UP THIS PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION.  

Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
1. Soil engineering is required at footing inspection.

Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 8 of 9 

12



Reviewed 

Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
Reviewed 

1. Seems like a large development that isn't providing recreation opportunities to its
residents. The 1.75 acres in this location is not in my opinion ideal for a park facility; 
however it may be useful to other county departments. Is developer interested in paying 
the "fee in lieu".  

NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 

1. No previously recorded archaeological sites noted within the project area.    An
archaeological survey is not recommended.  

NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens 
No comment 

US Postal Service, Moyock Postmaster 
1. Please contact the local postmaster (Moyock) to determine the mode of delivery and type

of delivery equipment. 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement 

Page 9 of 9 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT GRANTED 

On the date(s) listed below, the Board of Commissioners for the County of Currituck met and held a 
public hearing to consider the following application: 

Owner: Survey Road, LLC 
3500 Virginia Beach Blvd., Suite 528 
Virginia Beach, VA  23452 

Developer: South Moyock Development, LLC 
616 Village Drive, Suite G 
Virginia Beach, VA  23454 

Applicant: Bissell Professional Group 
PO Box 1068 
Kitty Hawk, NC  27949 

Property Location: 120 Survey Road and adjacent to Eagle Creek subdivision 

Project: PB 07-10 South Ridge, PUD – Preliminary Plat Extension  

Proposed Use: 146 Single Family Patio Home Lots, 5.46 7.21 Acres of Limited Business-Hotel 
Designation, Commercial Allocation 1.75 Acre County Dedicated Community 
Facility Site 

Meeting Dates: January 12, 2010 – Planning Board Recommendation 
February 1, 2010 – Board of Commissioners’ Public Hearing/Action 
November 5, 2012 – Board of Commissioner’s Extension 
November X, 2014 – Board of Commissioners Modification 

Having heard all the evidence and argument presented at the hearing, the Board finds that the 
application is complete, that the application complies with all of the applicable requirements of the 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance for the development proposed, and that therefore the 
application to make use of the above described property for the purpose indicated is hereby 
approved subject to all applicable provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance and the following 
conditions: 

64



(A) The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the plans 
submitted to and approved by the Board of Commissioners, a copy of which is filed in 
the office of the Planning Department. 

(B) If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held invalid or void, 
then this permit shall be void and of no effect. 

(C) This permit is valid for two years and will expire on INSERT DATE if work has not begun 
on the project at that time. Once work has begun and the use begins, this special use 
permit shall remain valid so long as the conditions under which is was granted are met. 

(D) Other conditions: 

1. The pre-construction plans shall meet and address all NCDOT traffic engineer comments and
recommended changes.

2. The right-of-way and legal instrument granted by Eagle Creek Property Owner’s Association for the
South Ridge subdivision entrance shall be resolved and recorded with the pre-construction submittal.   

3. Documentation regarding the Eagle Creek open space reduction (right-of-way dedication) shall be
provided with the pre-construction submittal. 

4. The proposed, improved access connection to the adjacent property does not extend to the
property line.  This access will not be used by a property owner until such time as the interconnection
is made; staff recommends the developer posting a bond for installation in lieu of paving the
connection to the property line.

5. The proposed wastewater treatment and disposal provides two options for South Ridge
development.  The first option includes wastewater treatment and disposal within the boundaries of 
South Ridge development.  The South Ridge utility plan shall also include any required green area, 
and must be submitted with the pre-construction submittal.  The second option includes treatment and 
disposal within the Eagle Creek development.  In order to proceed with the second option (Eagle 
Creek) the following information must be submitted with the pre-construction submittal: 
a. A summary of available capacity for the Eagle Creek system.  The summary should include all

existing demands as well as committed demands (platted lots). 
b. The basis and DWQ approval for residential flow reduction based on peak usage.
c. A detailed green area map.  Any modifications to green area must be approved by Currituck

County and NC DWQ prior to implementation.   
d. A detailed narrative of necessary improvements to the Eagle Creek wastewater treatment or

disposal areas to accommodate anticipated capacity of South Ridge (residential and 
commercial/county dedication) and financial responsibility for system upgrades. 

6. Wheelchair ramps shall be provided at intersections and other major points of pedestrian flow.
Wheelchair ramps and depressed curbs shall be constructed in accordance with NCDOT standards.
Please provide a curb cut detail with the submittal pre-construction plans.

7. On street parking, if installed, shall be provided in accordance with the variance issued by the
Board of Commissioners.

8. The pedestrian loop trail system must be located a minimum of 10 feet from all exterior property
lines and shall be located such to provide safe movement.

9. A Dominion Power encroachment agreement is required to allow roads, pedestrian trails, required
landscape buffers, and wastewater treatment infiltration pond within their 150 foot utility easement.
The agreement must be provided at the pre-construction submittal.

10. Pedestrian easements shall be provided on the final plat where the sidewalk extends beyond the
street right-of-way and on private lots.  (Development Review Manual)

11. Given the relativity small size of the proposed lots, deed restrictions or restrictive covenants shall
restrict parking of boats and recreational vehicles on individual lots or a boat/rv parking area shall
be provided.

65



12. The development impact statement references the pedestrian related active recreation element.  In
the interest of providing a complete and safe active recreation system, the applicant shall provide
sidewalks along Survey Road frontage, and between the proposed residential and nonresidential
uses.

13. The applicant shall provide the following information regarding the waste water treatment system
at pre-construction submission: 

a. A detailed explanation of who shall be responsible for the perpetual maintenance and
upkeep of the facility; 

b. State approval of the proposed system; and,
c. The expected life of the facility and the establishment of a reserve fund to support the

continued maintenance, upkeep, and replacement of the facility.   
14. The required improvements shall be installed and accepted prior to submission of final plat

approval for each phase.
15. In accordance with the UDO, the applicant shall create a sewer district for the proposed

development prior to final plat submission.   
16. The applicant shall submit a home and building design template that will be incorporated with the

approval.  Residential structures shall be designed with:
a. Variation in exterior architectural materials (siding, roofing);
b. Vertical and horizontal relief in buildings (roof lines, eaves, bump outs);
c. Variation in house styles/types;
d. Inclusion of front porches, projecting bays, vestibules; and,
e. The units shall have proportional attributes including overall height to width ratios of

existing building facades, doors, windows, projecting canopies, and other architectural
features with in the vernacular of the area.

17. In keeping with Policy WS7 of the 2006 Land Use Plan, the wastewater system shall be designed so
as to facilitate assimilation into a centralized system at a future date.   

18. All open space areas surrounding the lake shall be stabilized with grass, vegetation, and proposed
landscaping prior to recordation of the first phase.

19. All visual relief open space within each phase shall be stabilized and vegetated with grass and
proposed landscaping buffer.

20. Low impact development techniques should be integrated in the project to manage treatment of
stormwater.  (WQ3, WQ6, WQ7)

21. Internal pedestrian circulation shall be required for all commercial areas through the use of clearly
defined walkways. (CD8, CD9)

22. In commercial areas, parking located between a commercial building and street rights-of-way shall
be screened with a Type B Bufferyard. (CA3, CD7, CD8)

23. Dumpsters or similar solid waste receptacles, HVAC equipment, commercial mechanical units, or
similar appurtenances shall be screened from view using a combination of solid landscaping or
opaque fencing. (LUP CA3)

24. Landscape islands shall be incorporated into the commercial parking areas.  (LUP CD7, CD8, CA3)
25. In commercial areas pedestrian plazas or similar shaded outdoor seating areas shall be provided.

(LUP CD7, CD8, CD9)
26. Neighborhood serving commercial development shall integrate pedestrian scale and design

(proportional relationship of buildings and spaces to pedestrians).  Retail, office, and entertainment
uses shall be appropriately designed, small-scale businesses.  (LUP CD1, CD5, CD6, CD7, CD8,
CD9).

27. The maximum amount of pond aeration devices allowed by NC DWQ shall be installed.
28. A complete downstream analysis shall be included with the pre-construction submittal.
29. The driveways shall be two vehicle deep parking (including garage).
30. The slope of ponds shall be considered.
31. Cluster mailboxes shall be used.
32. The building pad elevations shall be raised a minimum of 18 inches.

66



33. A solid vegetative buffer and fencing between shall be provided to the adjacent agricultural
properties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County has caused this permit to be issued in its name, and the property 
owners/applicants of the property above described, do hereby accept this Special Use Permit together 
with all its conditions, as binding on them and their successors in interest. 

ATTEST: 

(Seal) 
 Clerk to the Board Chairman 

Board of Commissioners 

 Date 

(NOT VALID UNTIL FULLY EXECUTED) 

67



68



69



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Whalehead Trust Advisory Board Appointment 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Nomination and approval of appointees for vacant position on the Whalehead Preservation Trust 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Leeann Walton, Clerk to the Board 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Board Appointments 

70



WHALEHEAD PRESERVATION TRUST BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

6/3/2013
Cliff Scott District 1 * Aydlett          Eff. 5/1/2010 2nd Term 5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Andy Newbern* District 2 * Griggs          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2015

10/3/2011
Carl Ross District 3 * Petrey Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Jeanne Meiggs District 4 * McCord          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Steven Kesler District 5 * Gilbert          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2016

6/3/2013
Don Cheek At-Large * Martin          Eff. 5/1/2013 1st Term  5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Sharon Twiddy At-Large * O'Neal          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2015

6/3/2013
Travis Morris ** **          Eff. 5/1/2013 2nd Term 5/1/2016

6/3/2013
Penny Leary-Smith ** **          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2016

6/3/2013 Unexpired Term
**          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2014

3/1/2010
Kimberlee Hoey ** Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2015

*Needs Replaced

Commissioner Griggs
* 7 Members Must Be County Residents
** 4 Members May Be Non-Residents

71



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Approval of Minutes 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Approval of minutes for Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, October 20, 2014. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Leeann Walton, Clerk to the Board 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Consent Agenda 

72



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 

October 20, 2014 
Minutes 
Meeting of the Board of Commissioners 

The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 PM for a regularly scheduled meeting in the Board 
Meeting Room of the Historic Courthouse with the following members present:  Board Chairman 
Paul O’Neal, Vice-Chairman Paul Martin and Commissioners Marion Gilbert, Vance Aydlett, 
Butch Petrey, Paul Beaumont, and David Griggs.  Staff included County Manager Dan Scanlon, 
County Attorney Ike McRee and Planning Director Ben Woody.  

Chairman O’Neal called the meeting to order at 7 PM, 

A) Invocation
B) Pledge of Allegiance

Reverend Frank Custer of Mt.  Zion United Methodist Church gave the invocation and led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

C) Approval of Agenda

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the agenda.  Commissioner Martin seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

Approved Agenda 

REVISED  

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation-Reverend Dan Bergey, New Life Church Rev. Frank Custer, Mt. Zion UMC
B) Pledge of Allegiance-Reverend Dan Bergey, New Life Church Rev. Frank Custer
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please
limit comments to 3 minutes.

Administrative Reports 

A) Mr. Manly West, North Carolina Farm Bureau-Support for Installation of
Highway Safety Signage for Farm Equipment

B) Derek Kelly, CenturyLink-Presentation and Discussion of Current Products, Service
and Future Expansion Plans

73



C) Planning Department Presentation and Discussion of Moyock Wastewater and
Small Area Plan

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-14 CASP, Inc.:  Request for a conditional rezoning
of 37 acres from Light Industrial (LI) to Conditional District- Single Family Mainland (CD-
SFM) on property located in Moyock on Inventors Drive which is located on the east side
of Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 9, Parcels 26A And 26B, Moyock Township.

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-18 Currituck County:  A request to amend the Unified
Development Ordinance to clarify and revise miscellaneous sections of the Ordinance. The
revisions correct and clarify the identified sections in the UDO as it relates to nonconformities,
accessory uses and structures, stormwater management, setback and building height
standards, sidewalk standards, minor subdivision definition, public meeting notification
requirements, subdivision infrastructure maintenance, private access roads, variance findings
of fact, and nonresidential design standards.

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-21 Currituck County: A request to amend the Unified
Development Ordinance Chapter 6:  Required Infrastructure to revise the water supply
standards to require all new subdivisions and nonresidential development to be connected and
serviced by the county water supply system when located within the formulated distance for
connection and require performance guarantees when the proposed development exceeds the
formulated connection distance.

New Business 

A) Consideration & Action for a 5-year fuel purchasing contract from Eastern Aviation
Fuels, Inc

B) Board Appointments:
1. Economic Development Advisory

C) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of Minutes for Regular meeting for October 6, 2014, and Special

Meeting/Worksession Minutes, September 25, 2014
2. Budget Amendments
3. Consideration and Ratification of Public Safety 800 MHz System Usage Agreement

Between Currituck County and Volunteer Fire Departments
4. Project Ordinance - Connecting Corolla
5. Disposal of Records:  Finance Dept and Administration
6. Request for Approval of Permit Officer III Position and Job Description

D) Commissioner’s Report
E) County Manager’s Report

Closed Session 
According to GS 143-318.11(4) to discuss matters relating to the location or expansion of industries 
or other businesses-Project Move 

Adjourn 

74



D) Public Comment

Chairman O’Neal opened the public comment period. 

Mary Etheridge, Shawboro, discussed litigation her family has been in with the county since 
2011 regarding the approval of a junkyard behind her home.  She stated Commissioner Martin 
did not vote in favor of it.  She showed a picture of what she believes to be a junkyard and asks 
the public to decide whether it is a junkyard or a recycling center and whether she was treated 
fairly.  Chairman O’Neal asked Attorney McRee to review again the court decisions, which he 
did.  He stated the picture is a non-conforming junkyard and not the operation being discussed.  

Josh Bass, President, Currituck Chamber of Commerce, thanked the Fire, Police, EMS and 911 
personnel for their assistance and quick response to the fire emergency at the Twiford Law 
office, which is adjacent to the Chamber office.  He also thanked the Planning and Inspections 
Department and the outpouring of support from the County and the citizens of Currituck. 

Both Chairman O’Neal and Commissioner Aydlett acknowledged the fine job of the volunteer 
fire fighters and encouraged citizens to consider volunteering. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Comment period. 

Ad ministrative Reports 

A) Mr. Manly West, North Carolina Farm Bureau-Support for Installation of
Highway Safety Signage for Farm Equipment

Manly West from the Farm Bureau Board of Directors spoke to the need and their support for 
signage on our highways that denote the presence of slow-moving vehicles or equipment in an 
effort to prevent accidents and spoke of a related death two years ago. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to instruct the staff to see what needs to be done to have the 
signage installed on our roads.  Commissioner Griggs seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously.   

Mr.  West began discussing installation of mile marker signs on the highways.  The Board 
motion was amended by Commissioner Aydlett to add mile marker installation signs as well.  
The amended motion was seconded by Commissioner Griggs and carried unanimously. 

Mr.  West stated his opinion that anyone wishing to ride ATVs on private property should require 
the written consent of the property owner.  Commissioner Gilbert announced Mr.  West was 
elected President of the Soil and Water Conservation District. 

B) Derek Kelly, CenturyLink-Presentation and Discussion of Current Products,
Service and Future Expansion Plans

Mr.  Kelly introduced himself as the Marketing and Development Manager for CenturyLink and 
presented a powerpoint discussing our area’s customer base, voice service and internet access.  
He addressed Chairman O’Neal’s concern that many school children do not have access to 
internet, reviewing the service map with expansion plans and increasing internet speed with 
addition of fiber lines.  He addressed marketing materials, explaining that the mass amount of 
materials will unfortunately be received by some where service is not available.  Mr.  Kelly 
explained the Connect America fund and said he felt Currituck could get funding, reviewed the 
process, and asked for Board support in getting the FCC to relax some of the stringent 
requirements for the program.  Commissioner Aydlett asked about funding for services in Gibbs 

75



Woods.   Mr.  Kelly said if funding could be secured it is about twelve months to begin install.  
Commissioner Aydlett asked the County Manager to write a letter compelling Cox cable to 
supply service to the area.  Chairman O’Neal asked if petitions can spur installation of service.  
Mr.  Kelly said usually petitions don’t help, as it is about the math and the cost of providing 
service.  Commissioner Petrey said Currituck should be looked at as a whole instead of having 
pockets without service.  Mr.  Kelly said service is available to 96% now and feels it is a good 
number.   

C) Planning Department Presentation and Discussion of Moyock Wastewater
and Small Area Plan

Ben Woody, Director of Planning and Inspections, presented a summary for the public based on 
information discussed in prior work sessions.  Work sessions included topics such as land use, 
density, wastewater, zoning and the Moyock Small Area Plan.  Mr.  Woody explained the Land 
Use Plan as a policy document that looks to the future.  He explained land use categories and 
using zoning as a flexible tool for implementation of the land use plan.  He discussed density 
and how it is calculated, showing examples of plats with different design components offering 
similar densities.  Opinions differed amongst the Board allowing continued discussion of lot 
sizes and minimum lot size and density requirements, and what constitutes “rural character”.  
The Board thanked Mr.  Woody at the close of his presentation for his help in painting a clear 
picture for everyone. 

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-14 CASP, Inc.:  Request for a conditional
rezoning of 37 acres from Light Industrial (LI) to Conditional District- Single Family
Mainland (CD-SFM) on property located in Moyock on Inventors Drive which is
located on the east side of Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 9, Parcels 26A And 26B,
Moyock Township.

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE:  October 20, 2014 
PB 14-14 CASP, Inc. 

ITEM:  PB 14-14 CASP, Inc.: a conditional rezoning of 37 acres from Light Industrial (LI) 
to Conditional District- Single Family Mainland (C-SFM).  

LOCATION: Moyock – Inventors Drive, off Caratoke Highway 

TAX ID: 0009000026A0000 
0009000026B0000 

OWNER: CASP, Inc. 
PO Box 39 
Moyock, NC 27958 

APPLICANT: Hidden Acres Currituck, LLC 
PO Box 743 
Moyock, NC 27958 

76



LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Zoning 

NORTH: Agricultural/Undeveloped Residential AG 
SOUTH Assisted Living/Undeveloped Residential GB 
EAST: Residential Open Space (County Owned) SFM 
WEST: Fuel Supply Facility/Vacant GB 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the Moyock 

subarea.  

The policy emphasis of the Moyock sub-area is on properly managing the 
increased urban level of growth that this area is sure to experience over the 
next decade and beyond.  Residential development densities should be 
medium to high depending upon available services.  In areas where on-site 
wastewater is proposed and other County services are limited, development 
density should be limited to 1-2 units per acre.  However in areas where 
central sewer is proposed or existing, additional services are available and 
the character of the surrounding areas supports it, higher density ranging 
from 3-4 units per acre could be considered through the use of overlay zones. 

MOYOCK SAP: The Moyock Small Area Plan classifies the property as Full Service. 

Full Service designations are focal points in the community where high amounts 
of activity occur.  Mixed use development with both residential and 
commercial components will be present in these areas.  In addition, clustered 
or planned commercial and residential areas with diversity in housing types 
are preferred. Typical densities in full service designations range from 1.5 – 
3 units per acre depending on surrounding land uses.  All development should 
encourage human scale development and interconnected transportation 
systems that support both vehicles and pedestrians. 

Policies supporting the request include: 

Policy FLU 1 Promote compatibility between new development and existing 
development to avoid adverse impacts to the existing community. This is 
achieved through design and includes larger setbacks, landscaped or 
forested strips, transition zones, fencing, screening, density and/or bulk step 
downs, or other architectural and site planning measures that encourage 
harmony. 

CURRENT ZONING: Light Industrial (LI)   

PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District - Single Family Mainland (C-SFM) 

CURRENT USE: Undeveloped 

SIZE OF SITE: 37+/- acres 

ZONING HISTORY: Agricultural (A) – 1989 Zoning Map 
Light Manufacturing  (LM) - 1999 Zoning Map 

UTILITIES:  County water is available to serve this development.  The developer is 
requesting connection to the Moyock Central Sewer System.   

TRANSPORTATION: The proposed development has access to Caratoke Highway through an 
existing unimproved right-of-way.  There is an existing rail crossing 
located at the property’s development entrance.  The proposed road and 

77



rail crossing serving the development will be improved to NCDOT 
standards. 

FLOOD ZONE: The proposed development is located in the Shaded X flood zone (500-
year). 

WETLANDS: The county wetland inventory maps indicate the property has wetland 
characteristic; however, a wetland delineation is not required until 
submittal of the subdivision. 

SOILS: The proposed development is located on Roanoke soils, which are 
considered poorly drained.  The development is proposing to manage 
wastewater through off-site treatment and disposal.   

PLAN REQUEST: Conservation subdivision with 74 residential lots (2 du/acre) and 14.84 
acres of open space (40%). 

PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 
1. Use: conservation subdivision
2. Maximum of 74 homes
3. Minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet
4. Existing trees will be protected and preserved to the greatest degree practicable
5. Buffers to surrounding properties will exceed Currituck County requirements

COMMUNITY MEETING: 
A community meeting was held on May 15, 2014 at the Moyock Library.  Mark Bissell presented a 
brief summary of the development proposal, along with a conceptual plan of the development.  No 
adjacent property owners attended the meeting. 

TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The conditional zoning process provides an opportunity for an applicant to propose use limitations or 
development conditions that ensure development proposals are consistent with the policies set forth in 
adopted plans.  The TRC recommends approval of the proposed request.  The conditional rezoning 
request is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Land Use Plan and Moyock Small 
Area Plan, and is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the 
application, and is the appropriate zoning district and uses for the land. 

Additional Staff Comments: 

Larger lot subdivisions exist to the north and south of the land subject to the application; however, the 
adjacent lots proposed to the south are not platted and the adjacent lots located to the north are platted 
but no dwelling units have been constructed.  The subject property’s retention of the existing perimeter 
wooded buffer will help promote compatibility with adjoining properties. 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Board recommended approval of the development agreement as presented with technical 
review committee recommendation. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONS (9-15-14) 
The Board of Commissions continued this request pending additional discussion of the railroad and 
sewer. 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (8/12/14) 

78



Mr. Cooper asked if the Railroad Company has to give permission for them to cross. 

Mr. Woody said liability insurance will have to be paid for this crossing and they will have to 
have an agreement with the Railroad Company. 

Mr. Bissell said there is an existing approved crossing, but not to the Department of 
Transportation (DOT) standards.  They are working with the Railroad Company and the 
Homeowners Association will maintain it until DOT takes it over. This project will have sidewalks on 
both sides of the street. Mr. Bissell provided pictures of the future site and provided an overview 
of the project. 

Mr. Clark closed the public hearing. 

ACTION  
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 14-14 due to its consistency with the goals, objectives, and 
policies of the 2006 Land Use Plan and Moyock Small Area Plan, and is compatible with existing 
and proposed uses surrounding the land, and is the appropriate zoning district and uses for the 
land.  Ms. Overstreet seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 

Mr.  Woody presented and recounted the tabling of the request at the last meeting.  He deferred 
to Mark Bissell of Bissell Professional Group, who presented a powerpoint which enabled the 
Board to see the plat with surrounding land and subdivisions.  Mr.  Bissell described amenities, 
setting, and said the lot sizes were increased, thereby reducing the total number of lots, from 74 
to 67. He said the railroad issues were addressed, meeting all standards and requirements.  
Commissioner Martin verified approximate square footage of homes would be 2,000 square 
feet.  Commissioner Gilbert asked about sidewalk interconnectivity with adjacent subdivisions 
and was told by Mr.  Bissell that the sidewalks could adjoin neighboring subdivisions. 

Commissioner Petrey voiced concern about approving a subdivision that will face the same 
issues and challenges with the railroad as Shingle Landing subdivision did, which are still not 
resolved.  Commissioner Martin asked if it was possible to resolve the railroad issues prior to 
approval of the subdivision in an effort to protect buyers.  Mr.  Bissell said the contract with the 
railroad can be created after subdivision approval and the subdivision plan is developed.  There 
was some discussion of being proactive with negotiations with the railroad and disclosure 
statements being required from each buyer. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. 

Jim Wheeler of Moyock is opposed due to the amount of children he anticipates.  Schools are at 
95% capacity in Moyock, he said, and we need industry more than houses. 

JoAnne Gourmenis of Moyock said condo’s, townhouses, apartments or small homes on slabs 
are not compatible with surrounding area of custom homes.  She said small homes draw low 
income owners who don’t maintain their homes and that builders are all about making money.  
She wants to see half acre lots with crawlspaces.  Ms. Gourmenis also asked for help with a 
resolution to the railroad issue with Shingle Landing and roads being turned over to DOT. 

Susan Davis of Moyock said she does not wish to deny approval, but asks the lot sizes to be 
increased to 22,000 square feet.  She believes wastewater should be for businesses only, and 
she discussed the high cost of insurances and fees with respect to the railroad. 

79



Mr.  Kim Old, Moyock, asked the Board to approve the rezoning.  As a realtor, he sees the vast 
majority of buyers being military.  Mr.  Old said a nice home can be built on a small lot.  His son, 
Justin Old, is the builder and he employs a lot of local people. 

Kevin McCord, Moyock, supports approval, stating that North Carolina is the seventh fastest 
growing state in the country.  He said Justin Old is a good builder who lives and hires locally 
and is an active participant in the community.  Commercial won’t come without rooftops, he 
said, and growth is coming.  It must be planned and monitored. 

Chris Smith is not a resident of Currituck, but works at Griggs Lumber, a Currituck business.  He 
said Justin Old’s business, Quality Homes, is one of their biggest customers and they employ 
locals, unlike some other developers who come down from Virginia.  He asks for approval of the 
request. 

Jody Turner, Moyock, asks the Board to consider the amount of money nearby residents have 
spent on their homes, and wants the quality of homes to be considered. 

Bob Crocker asked what the price points would be.  He also has concerns with drainage and 
recommends silt venting.  Mr.  Bissell said the state will require erosion control and stormwater 
control permits.  Mr.  Bissell said the water runoff will actually decrease from the current 
condition.  Kim Old said the market will dictate pricing, but will most like start at mid $200,000 
range and up. 

Mark Sherwood, Elizabeth City, said he is employed by Mr.  Olds and he in turn employs six 
workers, all who utilize Currituck businesses.  He said all developers can’t be held to task for 
one bad one. 

Mr.  Wheeler spoke again on lot sizing and schools. 

Commissioner Griggs spoke to prohibiting development and asked Attorney McRee to explain 
the Board’s authority.  Mr.  McRee said a subdivision can’t be denied based on the lack of 
services or facilities.  A plan must be implemented to supply adequate facilities for development. 
The Board cannot keep someone from utilizing their land. 

Commissioner Beaumont stated a steady decline in the number of school students is predicted 
over the next ten years.  Mr.  Woody added the four-year grouping statistics are not showing 
any increases currently. 

Commissioners discussed growth, with Commissioner Petrey stating 540 homes are planned for 
the Moyock area.  Chairman O’Neal recalled the rapid growth in the 1990’s and the adequate 
facilities ordinance to address that growth.  Commissioner Gilbert added that the County has 
been proactive in looking at sites for future construction of schools. 

Chairman O’Neal said we can’t ask developers to meet the requirements of the Small Area and 
Land Use plans approved by the Board and then jerk the rug out from under them when they 
do.  He said if Commissioners don’t like the rules they need to change them.  Commissioner 
Petrey said the members of the Board did discuss lot size in the past, and there were some who 
agreed with his minimum size argument.  Chairman O’Neal feels it is not up to the Board to 
determine how much grass someone has to mow, and the free market will determine if people 
want small lots or large lots because people won’t buy what they don’t want. 

80



With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman O’Neal closed the public hearing and asked for a 
motion.  Commissioner Petrey moved to deny.  The motion failed due to lack of a second. 

Commissioner Beaumont moved to approve due to the request’s consistency with the Moyock 
Small Area Plan, adding a full disclosure regarding the railroad issues is to be provided.  With 
the applicant consenting to the railroad disclosure, Commissioner Martin seconded.  The motion 
carried six to one, with Commissioner Petrey voting against. 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-18 Currituck County:  A request to amend the
Unified Development Ordinance to clarify and revise miscellaneous sections of the
Ordinance. The revisions correct and clarify the identified sections in the UDO as it
relates to nonconformities, accessory uses and structures, stormwater management,
setback and building height standards, sidewalk standards, minor subdivision
definition, public meeting notification requirements, subdivision infrastructure
maintenance, private access roads, variance findings of fact, and nonresidential design
standards.

Ben Woody presented by reviewing the items and the reasons for the recommendations, and 
answered questions from the Board for clarification purposes.  Mr.  Woody stated the Planning 
Board recommended approval. 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: September 15, 2014 

Subject: PB 14-18 UDO Housekeeping Amendment 2014 

The enclosed text amendment submitted by the Currituck County Planning and Community 
Development Department is intended to clarify and revise miscellaneous sections of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO).  The revisions correct and clarify the identified sections in the new 
UDO as it relates to: 

Item 1 
Allows for the continued use, and minor expansion, of existing warehouse buildings in the 
General Business zoning district.  
Item 2 
Clarifies when nonconforming structures must be brought into compliance with today’s 
standards. 
Item 3 
Clarifies how setback requirements affect nonconforming structures.  
Item 4 
Allows small accessory structures in existing mobile home parks and on existing camper lots.  
Item 5 
Modifies the soil type used to determine pre-development runoff design.  
Item 6 
Clarifies that accessory dwelling units are allowed with a zoning compliance permit.  
Item 7 

81



Allows land application of sludge or septic in the Single-Family Isolated (SFI) zoning district 
with a use permit. 
Item 8 
Allows for a dune deck or beach access way on vacant oceanfront lots. 
Item 9 
Clarifies allowable setback encroachments and building height requirements.  
Item 10 
Reduces setback requirements for industrial zoning districts.  
Item 11 
Clarifies that minor subdivisions are exempt from sidewalk requirements.  
Item 12 
Corrects the definitions of minor and family subdivision. 

Item 13 
Modifies information required for sign notification of public meetings and hearings.  
Item 14 
Removes requirement that HOA president sign affidavit accepting infrastructure maintenance. 
Item 15 
Adds detail of alternate design of the private access road. 
Item 16 
Adds additional finding of fact for approving variance applications.  
Item 17 
Clarifies applicability of the nonresidential design standards. 

The Planning recommended approval of PB 14-18 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land 
Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly 
growth and development, and tabling #14 (Mining standards, including the information 
required for hydrological studies) for further discussion.  Motion carried unanimously.  

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (9/9/14) 
Mr. Schuler provided an overview of each revision. 

The Planning Board discussed nonconforming warehouse uses. 

Mr. Simpson said Frito-Lay has a warehouse which is located at 139 Fox Knoll Drive. The 
property was purchased about 10 years ago and they built a warehouse which is 6,400 sq. ft. 
Mr. Simpson said when the property was purchased he was told he would be allowed to 
developed 65% of it because Frito-Lay was going to grow.  Mr. Simpson said presently they 
need to make the warehouse 1,200 sq. ft. larger, which would fall under the 25%. The problem 
he has with this is they will continue to grow, and will not be able to expand under the present 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).    

Mr. Schuler said the property owner can request the property be rezoned to light industrial. 

Mr. Cartwright asked if #14 (mining standards, including the information required for 
hydrological studies) be tabled until the next Planning Board meeting so he can talk with some of 
the miners and engineers. 

Mr. Clark closed the public hearing. 

ACTION 

82



Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 14-18 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan 
and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and 
development, and tabling #14 (Mining standards, including the information required for 
hydrological studies) for further discussion.  Mr. Craddock seconded the motion and motion 
carried unanimously. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. 

Victor White, Kitty Hawk, discussed expansion of existing metal buildings.  He stated he had 
spoken previously to Mr.  Woody expressing that a 25% expansion was not enough for many of 
the businesses to complete their planned business expansions.  Mr.  White asked for 50% to be 
allowed for existing metal buildings to expand.  Mr.  Woody suggested options such as applying 
for a rezoning, or possibly a variance before the Board of Adjustment. 

With no one else wanting to speak Chairman O’Neal closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve PB14-18 due to its consistency with the Land Use 
Plan, to include increasing Item 1 expansion from 25% to 50%.  A second was made by 
Commissioner Gilbert and the motion carried unanimously. 

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-21 Currituck County: A request to amend the
Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 6:  Required Infrastructure to revise the water
supply standards to require all new subdivisions and nonresidential development to be
connected and serviced by the county water supply system when located within the
formulated distance for connection and require performance guarantees when the
proposed development exceeds the formulated connection distance.

Mr.  Woody presented and reviewed the request with the Board, stating staff and Planning 
Board recommend approval being effective immediately upon passage. 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: October 6, 2014 

Subject: PB 14-21 Water Supply Standards Text Amendment 

The enclosed text amendment initiated by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners is 
intended to amend the county’s recently adopted water supply standards text amendment.  The 
Board adopted an ordinance at their August 4, 2014 meeting that requires all new subdivisions 
and multifamily development to connect to the county water supply system (excluding family 
subdivisions and lots in the Fruitville and Moyock–Gibbs Woods Townships).  This ordinance was 
adopted with an effective date of March 1, 2015. 

The enclosed revision to the mandatory connection ordinance will restore the connection formula 
that was included in the original water supply ordinance.  The connection formula creates a 
proportional connection requirement based on total number of lots and proximity to the county 
water system.  If a development is not required to connect under the formula requirement, a cash 

83



deposit is required to cover the proportional cost of the future connection to the county water 
supply system. 

The purpose of the amendment is to establish a policy for potable water main extensions and 
connections that provides customers with a safe, high quality and reliable water supply while 
adequately maintaining existing infrastructure and services.  Additionally it is the intent of this 
proposed ordinance to: 

• Ensure water main extensions occur in a manner that support sound fiscal management and
economic growth while protecting the county’s rural character; 

• Support development with sufficient potable water and fire suppression infrastructure
capacity to serve existing customers while sustaining the ability to serve projected future 
growth; 

• Ensure the costs of infrastructure, facilities and services related to the demand created by
new growth and development is borne, in equal proportion, by those creating the 
additional demand; and 

• Encourage development in targeted growth areas, adequately served by existing or
planned infrastructure, consistent with the Land Use Plan. 

Planning staff recommends approval because the proposed text amendment is consistent with the 
land use plan; because it continues to focus water service in existing developed areas and in 
nearby targeted growth areas (POLICY WS3); and results in a logical and orderly development 
pattern. 
The Planning Board recommended approval of the text amendment as presented. 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (9-9-14) 

Ms. Glave provided an overview of the memo to the Planning Board. 

Mr. Clark closed the public hearing. 

ACTION 
Mr. Clark moved to approve PB 14-21 as presented, to remove the requirement that all new 
developments must connect to county water, replacing that language with the current formula in 
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) based on the distance that new development is to an 
existing county waterline, and an effective date of March 1, 2015.  Mr. Craddock seconded the 
motion and motion carried unanimously.  

Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing.  With no one signed up to speak, the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve PB 14-21, with a second by Commissioner Beaumont. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

New Business 

A) Consideration & Action for a 5-year fuel purchasing contract from Eastern
Aviation Fuels, Inc

County Manager Dan Scanlon reviewed the current status of purchasing fuel, including the fuel 
truck rental of $7,200 annually.  He explained entering into a five year contract will reduce the 

84



fuel truck rental to $100, saving a considerable amount of money.  He said there is a cap on the 
fuel cost and recommends approval. 

Commissioner Martin moved to approve entering into the 5 year contract with Eastern Aviation 
Fuels, with a second by Commissioner Gilbert.  The motion carried unanimously. 

B) Board Appointments:

1. Economic Development Advisory

The following appointments were approved for the Economic Development Advisory 
Board:  Raju Uppalapati, John Harris, Roger Lambertson, and Keith Hall. 

C) Consent Agenda:

1. Approval of Minutes for Regular meeting for October 6, 2014, and Special
Meeting/Worksession Minutes, September 25, 2014

2. Budget Amendments
3. Consideration and Ratification of Public Safety 800 MHz System Usage

Agreement Between Currituck County and Volunteer Fire Departments
4. Project Ordinance - Connecting Corolla
5. Disposal of Records:  Finance Dept and Administration
6. Request for Approval of Permit Officer III Position and Job Description

Mr. Scanlon gave explanations of item 4, the Ordinance to approve funds for the engineering 
and design line item for Connecting Corolla, and for item 3, the need for a user agreement being 
in place for the ISO inspection. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Commissioner 
Gilbert.  The motion carried unanimously. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

60808-532001 Supplies Sewer  $       7,000 
60808-557100 Software License Fee  $          211 
60808-590001 Capital Outlay - Sewer  $            28,726 
60808-532000 Supplies - Water  $            2,500 

60808-516001 
Repairs & Maintenance - 
Sewer  $          15,000 

60808-514500 Training & Education  $            2,000 
60808-588000 Contingency  $          16,437 

 $            35,937  $          35,937 

       Explanation: Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District (60808) - Transfer funds for pump 

85



replacement and unanticipated supplies for repairs. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District (60) - No change. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

14460-545000 Contract Services  $            74,000 

14390-499900 
Fund Balance 
Appropriated  $          74,000 

 $            74,000  $          74,000 

       Explanation: Carova Beach Service District (14460) - Increase appropriations to carry forward 
fund balance from last fiscal year for road improvements in the Carova Beach 
Service District. 

 Net Budget 
Effect: Carova Beach Service District (14) - Increased by $74,000. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

10775-503000 Salaries - Part time  $       1,448 
10775-505000 FICA  $          111 
10775-506001 Unemployment Insurance  $            15 
10775-507000 Retirement  $          180 

10775-545000 
Contract Services - 
Nutrition  $            1,754 

 $       1,754  $            1,754 

       Explanation: Senior Center (10775) - Transfer funds to hire replacement position for the Knotts 
Island Senior Center. 

Net Budget Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

86



Effect: 

D) Commissioner’s Report

Commissioner Gilbert expressed appreciation for all involved with Friday night’s fire in Moyock.  
She reminded everyone that early voting starts October 23rd and urged everyone to get out and 
vote. 

Commissioner Petrey announced Sharon United Methodist’s fried chicken dinner from 5 PM till 
7 PM Saturday night. 

Commissioner Aydlett explained that his missed Board meetings due to sickness stems from his 
medications required for his kidney transplant, and the fact they suppress his immune system.  
He added this is the reason he does not attend many functions anymore, as he gets sick very 
easily. 

Commissioner Beaumont hailed the prompt response by County volunteers as well, stating 
Friday’s Moyock office fire could have been much worse. 

E) County Manager’s Report  -

No Report. 

Closed Session 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to enter into Closed Session pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(4) to 
discuss matters relating to the location or expansion of industry or businesses within the county 
and pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11 (a)(3) to consult with the county attorney and to preserve the 
attorney-client privilege.  Commissioner Petrey seconded, the motion carried unanimously, and 
the Board moved into Closed Session. 

Adjourn 

After returning from closed session and there being no further business, Commissioner Martin 
moved to adjourn, with a second by Commissioner Petrey.  The motion carried unanimously 
and the meeting was adjourned. 

87



Number 2015029

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

56868-590005 Complete Car. Water Wells 229,991$   
56868-590001 0.75 MGD Conventional 34,102$   
56868-590004 Piping Distribution 185,761$   
56868-596100 Professional Services 10,128$   

229,991$   229,991$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

SOB Water (66868) - Transfer within the construction budget to complete the Corolla Light Deep Well 
for the SOBWS RO Plant Expansion in Corolla.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

88



Number 2015028

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10450-545000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 1,700$   
10450-532000 SUPPLIES 1,700$   

1,700$   1,700$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Tax (10450) - Transfer funds for upgrade to online services in order to properly display maps.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

89



Number 2015027

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10790-590000 Capital Outlay 2,576$   
10790-532000 Supplies 2,576$   

2,576$   2,576$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Library (10790) - Transfer funds to purchase tables for the Barco library

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

90



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title

September 2014 CDBG Monthly Progress Report 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Progress report for September activities regarding the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Tammy Glave 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

91



 

Memorandum 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

FROM:  Ben Woody, AICP 
Planning Director 

DATE: October 14, 2014 

SUBJECT: September 2014 CDBG #11-C-2308 Scattered Site Housing Project Update 

The 2011 Community Development Block Grant remained on schedule for the month of 
September.  A summary of September’s progress follows: 

• Katie Ware’s new home was delivered and set up on site. Underpinning was installed.

• Necessary building inspections performed.

• Requested temporary relocation payment for reconstruction Case #4.

• Requested temporary storage facility payments for Case #4.

• Completed requests for checks.

• Finance Director is investigating sales tax issues.

• Processed and forwarded Requisition #7 to the Finance Director.

• HUD 4710 Report submitted.

• Continued on-going general administration and financial management responsibilities.

Thank you. 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development 

Department 
Planning and Zoning Division 

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 
232-3026 

92



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title

Consent Agenda: Fee Schedule Amendment – Solar Array 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The Board of Commissioners approved a use permit on June 2, 2014 for a solar array located on NC 34 near 
Shawboro Elementary School.  In anticipation of this project moving forward, staff has identified the need to 
establish an appropriate building permit fee.  Under the current fee schedule a $100 electrical permit fee would 
apply to a solar array project – this fee amount is not commensurate with staff resources needed to monitor and 
inspect such a project, nor is it consistent with fees charged by other jurisdictions. 

Staff recommends the Board adopt a revised fee for solar array projects to cover anticipated county costs and to remain 
competitive with other jurisdictions.  Additional information is available in the attached memo. 

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

93



Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

From: Ben Woody 
Planning & CD Director 

Date: October 27, 2014 

Subject: Fee Schedule Amendment – Solar Array 

The Board of Commissioners approved a use permit on June 2, 2014 for a solar array located 
on NC 34 near Shawboro Elementary School.  In anticipation of this project moving forward, 
staff has identified the need to establish an appropriate building permit fee.  Under the 
current fee schedule a $100 electrical permit fee would apply to a solar array project – this 
fee amount is not commensurate with staff resources needed to monitor and inspect such a 
project, nor is it consistent with fees charged by other jurisdictions. 

The following table outlines the building permit fee structure for other North Carolina 
jurisdictions.  The fee amounts indicated in the table are based on the size and scale of the 
project approved in Currituck County.   

JURISDICTION FEE SCHEDULE 
BUILDING PERMIT FEE BASED ON 

ECOPLEXUS PLAN 
86,400 panels (20 Mega Watts) 

Pasquotank County 
$5/panel  for first 500 

$1/panel over 500 $88,400 

Pitt County $200 + $0.50/panel $43,400 

Bertie County 
$0.35 panel + $1,000 

electrical permit $31,240 

Beaufort County $0.25/panel $21,600 

Montgomery County $800 per Mega Watt $16,000 

Union County 
$775 per MW <5 

$850 per MW 5-10 
$1000 per MW >10 

$15,500 

Rutherford County $2.50 per $1,000 of 
total project cost $10,000 

Currituck County 
(recommendations) 

$200 + $0.15/panel 
$200 + $800 per MW 
$200 + $0.20/panel* 
$200 + $0.50/panel 

$16,000 
$13,160 
$17,480 
$43,400 

94



Fee Schedule Amendment – Solar Array 
Page 2 of 2 

The fee amount set by the Board of Commissioners should cover county costs for administration, 
inspections, gas, and vehicle maintenance.  The inspection process and the number of site visits 
are based on the type of solar array that is constructed.  If the project consists of panels that 
require concrete pad footings then foundation inspections are needed.  If the panels require a 
helix anchoring system then foundation inspections are not needed and are covered by a 
special inspection report.  Electrical trenches, bonding and connections need to be inspected 
per the NEC (National Electrical Code).  The staff estimates that a solar array project similar in 
size and scale to the project approved in Currituck County would need a fee structure of 
$10,000 - $20,000 to cover anticipated county costs and remain competitive with other 
jurisdictions. 

*In the absence of Board direction, the staff recommends adoption of a building permit fee in
the amount of $200 + $0.20 per panel. 

95



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Southern Outer Banks Water System – Recommendation of Award – Reverse Osmosis Well Project 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The Southern Outer Banks Water System (SOBWS) has been expanded as a result of the purchases of the water 
systems in Corolla Light, Monteray Shores, Currituck Club and Pine Island.  The improvements included: 

• 1 million gallon/day expansion to the treatment process including building expansion (Complete)
• 1.5 million gallon finished water storage tank  located on the treatment plant site (Complete)
• Raw water piping for the swallow wells along Hwy 12 recently acquired in the Monteray Shores system

purchase (Complete)

This project is for the installation of a new raw water well and piping to serve the new Reverse Osmosis portion of 
the treatment plant.  The well will be approximately 225’ deep and will extend into the Yorktown Aquifer.  The 
well is located in the Corolla Light well field easement along the ocean front and will interconnect to the existing 
raw water main along Shad Street. 

Attached is the recommendation of award from the consulting engineers.  Funds are available for the project 
through the SOBWS expansion capital project.  This is the final task to complete the SOBWS water treatment 
system expansion project. 

We recommend awarding the well project to the low bidder, A.C. Schultes, in the amount of $652,496.00.  With 
your approval of the bid, we will execute the contracts for construction and begin the work. 

96



Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Eric T. Weatherly 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Consent Agenda 

97



98



99



100



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Dominion Right-of-Way Agreement for the Parks & Recreation Maintenance Building 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

This agreement provides Dominion with an easement for underground power lines along College Way, starting at 
the north driveway of the Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center, moving north to the site of the Parks & 
Rec Maintenance Building.  

Action Requested: 
Board consideration and approval – if approved, authorize County Manager to execute agreement. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Michelle Perry, Engineer Technician 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Consent Agenda 
101



102



103



104



105



106


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck:
	14-16 Case Analysis
	Development Agreement

	Whalehead Preservation Trust
	Appointment Form

	Approval of Minutes for October 20, 2014
	Minutes for October 20, 2014

	Budget Amendments
	CDBG Monthly Status Report
	Report

	Building Permit Fee Schedule-Solar Array
	Fees Amendment

	Recommendation of Award, SOBWS Reverse Osmosis Well
	Bid Tabulation
	Award Recommendation

	Dominion Right-of-Way Agreement for Parks & Rec Maintenance Building
	Agreement




